
 

 

 

 

 

 
NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

COMMISSION MEETING 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

SCIOTO CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

Thursday, April 10, 2014, 1:30 p.m. 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

1:30 p.m. 1. Welcome and Introductions – Marilyn Brown, Chair 

 Recognition of Bill Yaple 

 Election of Officers and Executive Committee – Matt Greeson, Nominating 

Committee Chair 

 

1:40 p.m. 2. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of March 13, 2014  Commission Meeting Minutes 

 

1:42 p.m. 3. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC 

 Quarterly Membership Update – Eileen Leuby, MORPC Member Services 

Coordinator 

 Insight 2050 

 

1:50 p.m. 4. New Members – William Murdock, MORPC 

a. Proposed Resolution 09-14: “ACCEPTING MADISON TOWNSHIP (FRANKLIN 

COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

(MORPC)”  

b. Proposed Resolution 13-14: "ACCEPTING THE SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY OF 

CENTRAL OHIO (SWACO) AS AN ASSOCIATE (NON-VOTING) MEMBER OF THE 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC) 

 

1:55 p.m. 5. Proposed Resolution 12-14: "TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER 

INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CENTRAL OHIO COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 

CORPORATION (COCIC) FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE TRUSTED PARTNER 

PROGRAM FOR UP TO $60,000 AND TO ENTER INTO TWO TRUSTED PARTNER 

PROJECT AGREEMENTS FOR $30,000 EACH" - Kathy Werkmeister 

 

1:58 p.m. 6. Proposed Resolution 14-14: "TO AFFIRM THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING 

COMMISSION'S SUPPORT OF FAIR HOUSING AND PROMOTING FAIR AND EQUAL 

HOUSING IN THE CENTRAL OHIO AREA" - Kathy Werkmeister 

  



Commission/Transportation Policy Committee Agenda 

April 10, 2014 

Page 2 

 
Special Guests and Presentations 

 

2:00 p.m. 7.  Featured Shared Services: Upper Arlington - Theodore Staton, City of Upper 

Arlington City Manager 

 

2:10 p.m. 8. Regional Energy Action Plan – Christina O’Keeffe, MORPC Energy & Air Quality 

Director 

 

 Committees 

 

2:20 p.m. 9. Regional Policy Roundtable – Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher, Chair 

a. Proposed Resolution 11-14: “SUPPORTING THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO 

THE OHIO CONSTITUTION (ISSUE 1) TO EXTEND THE STATE CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM” – Laura Koprowski 

 

b. Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Hill Brown & Ritter and Laura 

Koprowski, MORPC Public & Government Affairs Director 

 

 10. Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips, Newly Elected Chair  

2:30 p.m. a. Call to Order – Eric Phillips, Chair 

2:31 p.m. b. Monthly Progress Report – Nick Gill, MORPC Transportation Systems & 

Funding Interim Director 

 Functional Class Update - Maria Schaper, MORPC Transportation Systems 

& Funding 

 

2:35 p.m. c. Draft 2015 Planning Work Program – Nick Gill, MORPC Transportation 

Systems & Funding Interim Director 

 

2:40 p.m. d. Transit System Review – Mike Bradley, COTA Capital Projects & Planning 

Director 

 

2:50 p.m. e. Proposed Resolution T-3-14: “ADOPTION OF MORPC ATTRIBUTABLE FUNDING 

PROGRAM PRINCIPLES & PROCEDURES” – Nick Gill, MORPC Transportation 

Systems & Funding Interim Director 

 

2:55 p.m. 

 

 

f. Consent Agenda 

 Approval of March 13, 2014 Transportation Policy Committee Meeting 

Minutes 

 Proposed Resolution T-4-14: “AMENDING THE SFY 2014 PLANNING 

WORK PROGRAM TO MODIFY THE ACTIVITY TO INVESTIGATE 

PASSENGER RAIL SERVICE BETWEEN COLUMBUS AND CHICAGO” 
 

2:56 p.m. a. Adjourn Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips, Chair 

 

2:57 p.m. 11. Motion to Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

 

2:58 p.m. 12. Other Business 

 

3:00 p.m. 13. Adjourn – Eric Phillips, Chair 



Commission/Transportation Policy Committee Agenda 

April 10, 2014 

Page 3 

 
 
 

PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR ssaunders@morpc.org  
IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 

 
 

The next Commission Meeting is 
Thursday, May 8, 2014 at 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

 
 

Note: Due to construction, a portion of the eastbound lane of Liberty Street is closed between South Front and 

Short Streets; the westbound lane onto Short Street remains open. The closure is March 31, 2014 through the 

end of the year. MORPC's parking lot is accessible via Front Street, Liberty Street, or Short Street.  Please be 

sure to park in a MORPC visitor space, in a space with an “M” on it, or in any yellow space. Handicapped 

parking is available at the back of MORPC’s building. 
 

mailto:ssaunders@morpc.org


 

 

 
 

 

Memorandum 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Executive Committee 
Officers and Board Members 

FROM: Matt Greeson, Secretary 

DATE: April 4, 2014 

SUBJECT: NOMINATION OF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

BACKGROUND 
In accordance with the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission Articles of Agreement, the Commission members 
will be notified in writing at least five (5) days prior to the April 10, 2014 annual meeting as to the nominees for 
MORPC’s Officers and Executive Committee members. The Nominating Committee excerpt from the Articles is as 
follows: 

"At least twenty (20) days prior to the annual meeting, the chair shall appoint the Nominating Committee.  
Said Nominating Committee having been duly appointed and confirmed shall, at least ten (10) days prior to 
the annual meeting of the COMMISSION, report the names of the candidates so nominated to the secretary.  
The secretary shall advise each member of the COMMISSION, in writing, at least five (5) days prior to the 
annual meeting as to the nominees so selected. At the annual meeting, the chair of the Nominating 
Committee shall report the names so nominated. After this report is presented, nominations from the floor 
shall be invited. Such nominations must be seconded. The secretary then shall prepare ballots properly 
identifying the nominees; said ballots shall be distributed and tallied during the annual meeting by a 
temporary committee appointed for that purpose." 

The Nominating Committee members are: 

Matt Greeson - Chair     Dean Ringle 

Derrick Clay      Nancy White 

Pam Hykes-O'Grady 

NOMINATING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Nominating Committee met on March 31, 2014 and made the following recommendations: 

The Officers are serving the first year of a tw-year term expiring April 2016: 

 Eric Phillips, Chair 

 Matt Greeson, Vice-Chair 

 Rory McGuiness, Secretary 

The nominees for Executive Committee members are: 

New one-year term - Expires April 2015 

 Marilyn Brown, Franklin County, voting Ex-Officio - serving as Past Chair 

 Derrick Clay, Franklin County, voting Ex-Officio - serving as Chair of the Building Committee 

 Joe Stefanov, City of New Albany, voting Ex-Officio - serving as Chair of the Benefits Committee 

Serving second year of a two-year term - Expires April 2015 

 Dennis Stapleton, Delaware County   Tracie Davies, City of Columbus 

 Eric Phillips, City of Marysville 

Renew two-year term - Expires April 2016 

 Marsha Grigsby, City of Dublin   Matt Greeson, City of Worthington 

 Rory McGuiness, City of Columbus 

New two-year term - Expires April 2016 

 Karen Angelou - City of Gahanna   Rob Platte - Etna Township 

 Michael Ebert - City of Canal Winchester 

Pam Hykes-O'Grady motioned to approve the nominations, second by Nancy White, motion passed unanimously. 



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Commission 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, March 13, 2014 

1:30 p.m. 

 

Commission Members 

Karen Angelou 

Chris Bauserman 

Stacey Boumis 

Eric Brandon 

Marilyn Brown 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher 

Franklin Christman 

Derrick Clay 

Ben Collins 

Karl Craven 

Michael Ebert 

Steve Gladman 

Matt Greeson 

Marsha Grigsby 

Marsha Hall 

Marian Harris 

Tracy Hatmaker 

Dan Havener 

Jan Heichel for Bryan Rhoads 

Tom Homan 

Erik Janas 

Anthony Jones 

Steve Kennedy 

Greg Lestini 

Rory McGuiness 

Bonnie Michael 

Erin Miller 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

John O’Grady 

Eric Phillips 

Rob Platte 

Dean Ringle 

Dennis Stapleton 

Joe Stefanov 

Steve Stolte 

Scott Tourville 

Ellen Walker 

Nancy White

 

Associate Members 

Jeff Cabot John O’Meara  

 

Policy Committee Members 

Holly Mattei Thom Slack Ira Weiss 

 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Amelia Costanzo 

Mark Crosten 

Mary Ann Frantz 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Robert Lawler 

Eileen Leuby 

Sarah McQuaide 

William Murdock 

Deborah Murphy 

Brenda Noe 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Maria Schaper 

Andy Taylor 

Nathaniel Vogt 

Garth Weithman 

 

Guests 

Mark Bell, U.S. Representative Patrick Tiberi’s  

 Office 

Rep. Cheryl Grossman, Ohio House of  

 Representatives 

Amy Lowe, FCEO 

Greg Murphy, ODOT 

Joe DiStefano, Calthorpe Associates 

Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter 

 

 

Chair Marilyn Brown called the Commission Meeting to order at 1:35 p.m. 

 

Welcome and Introductions – Marilyn Brown, MORPC Chair 

Marilyn Brown welcomed new members Chris Bauserman, Delaware County Engineer, and Ben Collins, Plain 

Township Administrator. 

 

The following individuals honored Robert Lawler, MORPC Transportation Systems & Funding Director, in 

recognition of his upcoming retirement: 



Commission Meeting Minutes 

March 13, 2014 

Page 2 

 
 Representative Cheryl Grossman on behalf of the Ohio House of Representatives 

 Rory McGuiness on behalf of Columbus Mayor Coleman  

 Mark Bell on behalf of U.S. Representative Patrick Tiberi 

 Greg Murphy on behalf of Jerry Wray and the Ohio Department of Transportation 

 

Chair Brown announced that she made the following appointments effective April 1, 2014: 

 Rory McGuiness, Bylaws Committee Co-Chair 

 Derrick Clay, Building Committee Chair 

 

Eric Phillips reported the Boundaries Discussion Task Force is looking at multiple options on potential 

expansion of the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) area. The Task Force will bring recommendations 

to the Commission in the next few months. 

 

Consent Agenda 

Erik Janas made a motion to approve the consent agenda, second by Joe Stefanov; motion passed.   

 

Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 

William Murdock announced that the Columbia Gas WarmChoice program along with MORPC’s Residential 

Energy Efficiency department received a Midwest Energy Efficiency Association (MEEA) Inspiring Efficiency 

Impact award. This award recognizes organizations that have made a significant contribution to market 

transformation either through the implementation of a specific program or through a policy change.  

 

MORPC team members facilitate two regional collaboration groups: the Delaware-Franklin Staff Summit and 

the Southeast Area Group. In order to provide service that is more efficient to our members, the Delaware-

Franklin Staff Summit is splitting into two groups: Northeast and Northwest. The Southeast Area Group will 

remain the same and an additional group covering Hilliard to Rickenbacker will be added. These are “nuts & 

bolts” meetings between planners and transportation directors. The groups meet twice a year. Amelia 

Costanzo is the lead MORPC team member. 

 

The Insight 2050 Steering Committee Kick-Off Meeting met this morning. Insight 2050 is the name given to 

the regional growth evaluation tool project designed to provide implications of different growth scenarios. 

Yaromir Steiner, Founder and CEO of Steiner + Associates, chairs the committee, which has a diverse 

representation from stakeholders, geographical locations, and skill sets.  Peter Calthorpe, owner of the 

consulting firm selected to create this tool, is the keynote speaker at MORPC’s State of the Region Luncheon 

on April 17, 2014. Columbus 2020 and ULI Columbus are partners with MORPC on this project. Kerstin Carr is 

the lead MORPC team member. 

 

Upcoming MORPC events: 

 State of the Region – Only 90 seats available for the April 17, 2014 luncheon at the Downtown Hilton.  

 The Strategic Directions for Central Ohio forum for MORPC Associate Members is May 6, 2014 at The 

Columbus Foundation.   

 Franklin County Engineer’s Annual Township Dinner – Thursday, March 13, 2014, Berwick Manor. 

 Diversity Training – April 8, 2014, 1:00-5:00 p.m., MORPC. Commission members and/or staff are 

welcome to attend the training that focuses on generational diversity.   

 

The Housing and Community Services Working Group sent a survey to Commission members last week. So far, 

thirty percent have responded. Members were encouraged to complete the survey by Friday, Marcy 14, 2014. 

 

 

 

 

 



Commission Meeting Minutes 

March 13, 2014 

Page 3 

 
Special Guests and Presentations 

 

Featured Shared Services: Mifflin Township – Nancy White, Mifflin Township Fiscal Officer 

Ellen Walker introduced Nancy White who gave an update on the Metropolitan Emergency Communications 

Consortium (MECC). MECC began with Jefferson, Plain, and Mifflin Townships. It has expanded to include 

Violet Township, Truro Township, the City of Whitehall, and Licking County. 

 

The State of Zoning in Central Ohio – Andy Taylor, MORPC Planning & Environment 

Andy Taylor reported on The State of Zoning in Central Ohio. In addition to the work of our local government 

members on land use and zoning, MORPC remains keenly aware of the connection between land use and 

transportation. That is, changes in land use create transportation demand and changes in the transportation 

system can open opportunities for new uses of the land. MORPC collaborated with the Columbus Realtors 

(formerly CBR) to dive deeper into zoning and development. MORPC will release the whitepaper and launch an 

online zoning and permitting lookup tool later this month. 

 

Committees 

 

Regional Policy Roundtable –Marliee Chinnici-Zuercher, Roundtable Chair 

 Legislative Update –Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter and Laura Koprowski, MORPC Public & 

Government Affairs Director 

Steve Tugend and Laura Koprowski gave the legislative update and highlighted the following issues: 

o HB 5 

o HB 472 

o Capital bill 

o HB 289 

o State Issue 1 

o Data bills (HB 321, HB 323, HB 324) 

 

Members asked Mr. Tugend to look into HB 327 regarding local government budgeting reserve 

balances.  

 

See the March 2014 Legislative Update for other legislative news 

 

Transportation Policy Committee – Marilyn Brown, MORPC Chair  

Chair Marilyn Brown called the Transportation Policy Committee Session to order at 2:27 p.m.  The session 

adjourned at 2:35 p.m. Separate minutes are attached. 

 

Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

Derrick Clay made a motion to approve the actions of the Transportation Policy Committee, second by Nancy 

White; motion passed. 

 

The Commission Meeting adjourned at 2:36 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2014MarchMECC%20(1).pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2014MarchMECC%20(1).pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2014MarchZoning%20(1).pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2014MarchLegUp%20(1).pdf


1 
 

 

MORPC Monthly Agency Report 

March 2014 

 
Public and Government Affairs  

Laura Koprowski – lkoprowski@morpc.org 

 

2014 State of the Region 

MORPC’s signature event, State of the Region, is scheduled for April 17, 2014 at the new Hilton 

Downtown Hotel. We are excited to announce that the event has sold out! For registration questions, 

please contact Garth Weithman at gweithman@morpc.org or 614-233-4127. 

 

The State of the Region program includes MORPC’s annual awards ceremony. Nominees for the Regional 

Leadership Award and William C. Habig Collaborative Award are available on MORPC’s website. This 

year’s keynote speaker is Peter Calthorpe. An internationally sought after speaker, Calthorpe was named 

one of 25 “innovators on the cutting edge” by Newsweek Magazine for his work redefining the models of 

urban and suburban growth in America. Calthorpe’s firm, Calthorpe Associates is working with MORPC to 

create a regional growth toolkit to assist our local governments. More about this effort, branded 

insight2050, will be shared during the luncheon program. 

 

Membership Report 

Member visits were completed to Blendon, Etna and Plain Townships, the City of Grandview Heights, and 

the Village of Riverlea. Team members attended member's State of the City meetings at Pickerington, 

Gahanna and Dublin.  A New Member Orientation was held before the March Commission meeting and 

representatives from Plain Township, Village of Obetz, City of Grandview Heights, and the City of Dublin 

attended. 

 

MORPC welcomes Madison Township (Franklin County) as a new local government member of MORPC. 

Prospective member visit presentations were completed to Genoa Township, Village of Johnstown, City of 

London and the Solid Waste Authority of Central Ohio (SWACO).  SWACO indicated the organization would 

like to join MORPC as an Associate Member.  

 

Membership Coordinator Eileen Leuby is now certified as a Six Sigma White Belt from the Center for 

Professional Training and Development at Franklin University. 

 

MORPC In the News 

The following articles featuring MORPC and MORPC staff members appeared in the local media: Business 

First: “Columbus Foundation Names 5 NonProfits to Watch”; ColumbusUnderground: “5 Nonprofits to 

Watch in 2014”; Business First: “ME3 energy audit program looking for final few participants before 

funding dries up;” Columbus CEO Magazine: “Will Traffic Slow Business Growth?”; The Columbus 

Dispatch: “Central Ohio Having Baby Boom”; and The Columbus Dispatch: “Transportation Insider”. 

 

Online Communications Efforts 

MORPC members and associate members are invited to participate in a Social Media Workshop on June 

18, 2014. The workshop will be tailored for local governments and public organizations. Thinking about 

creating a Facebook page for your community or wondering if Instagram would be an effective outreach 

mailto:gweithman@morpc.org


2 
 

tool? This workshop will allow you to set-up the latest and most popular online communications tools as 

well as provide effective strategies to drive resident engagement and followers.  

 

MORPC’s 2014 Online Communications Plan is finalized. The plan outlines goals and strategies for 

maximizing the agency’s online communications efforts, including websites, social media and e-

newsletters. An overview of how goals and strategies were carried out in 2013 is available in an Executive 

Summary. Both documents are included in this packet. 

 

Community Involvement 

MORPC developed a new Communications and Public Involvement Plan for the organization that details 

public involvement requirements and engagement strategies. The plan’s goal is to ensure consistent, 

active and effective methods to share and receive input from the community about MORPC’s plans, 

funding decisions, and programs. 

 

MORPC’s Community Advisory Committee (CAC) held its monthly meeting on March 3, 2014.  MORPC 

staff is working with the CAC membership to enhance meeting format and update the committee’s 

bylaws. During the meeting, members and staff reviewed and discussed members’ input. In addition,  

informational items were presented to include an amendment to the Metropolitan Transportation Plan to 

include two new projects, DataSource 2.0 and the State of Zoning in Central Ohio.  Proposed Resolutions: 

T-1-14: "Authorizing the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission as the Designated Recipient for Section 

5310 Funds and to File Applications with the Federal Transit Administration for the Columbus Urbanized 

Area" and T-2-14: "Amending the State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2014-2017 Transportation Improvement 

Program,"  were presented and approved.  

 

MORPC sent a letter of support to the Air Force to bring the KC-46A “Pegasus” to Rickenbacker Air 

National Guard Base as the main base of operations. The entire KC-46A program will span 15 years, 

starting in fiscal 2014. Rickenbacker is one of five locations vying for this honor with final decisions for 

the aircraft training and operating sites expected in May 2014. 

 

Transportation  

Nick Gill – ngill@morpc.org 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan 

MORPC sent notices to jurisdictions concerning the 2012-2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) 

amendment process presented during the March committee meetings.  The web page is updated to 

reflect the amendment process.  

 

Highways and Planning 

MORPC team members completed the first review of the Federal-Aid Functional Class system which 

incorporated comments communities provided through an interactive website MORPC created.  Proposed 

changes are updated on the website and the proposed revisions were sent back out to communities for 

additional review. 

 

ODOT held a public meeting on the I-70/I-71 downtown innerbelt projects March 19, 2014.  Information 

on the future phases of the project, including the enhanced bridge crossing was provided for public input.  

Additional information is available at: 

http://www.dot.state.oh.us/projects/7071/publicmeetings/Pages/March-19-2014Meeting.aspx 

 

Transit/Human Services 

The last cycle of Section 5310 program funds administered by ODOT Office of Transit is in the final 

stages.  MORPC team members announced the program, assisted applicants, and reviewed and scored 

applications before forwarding to ODOT for final statewide selection. Additionally, team members began 

putting together a work plan and budget for the new Section 5310 Program administration MORPC is 

undertaking as the Designated Recipient. 

 

http://www.dot.state.oh.us/projects/7071/publicmeetings/Pages/March-19-2014Meeting.aspx


3 
 

COTA is undertaking a Transit System Review and held a series of public meetings on different bus 

system scenarios. The system review is considering scenarios that use their available funding ranging 

from maximizing ridership to providing some level of bus service to as many areas as possible.  Additional 

information is available at www.cota.com.  

 

RideSolutions  

The RideSolutions team conducted 16 outreach activities in March, including hosting its first 

Transportation Info Fair at the Ohio Department of Health with its partners (staff from COTA, Paving the 

Way PTW, CoGo, Car2Go, and ODOT). The RideSolutions team are hosting a second Info Fair in May at the 

Ohio Department of Health. 

 

RideSolutions successfully assisted the IQor Corporation in development and implementation of its 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) relocation plan.  IQor moved its employees from the 

Columbus site to New Albany.  RideSolutions will be at the new IQor site to drive TDM awareness and 

increase employee ridesharing opportunities.  Together, RideSolutions and COTA will educate and 

connect employees to reliable and cost-effective transportation options. 

 

The Greener Workplace Roundtable employer, Franklin University, is implementing numerous outreach 

and awareness events.  RideSolutions met with the members of the Mount Carmel Green Team to 

discuss and plan the next steps in developing its plan of action to implement healthy commute options at 

all of the Mount Carmel sites. 

 

Freight/Intermodal 

Work continues on recommendations to workforce transportation issues in the Rickenbacker area.  

MORPC is reviewing both short-term and long-term solutions.  The first goal is to provide these employers 

with a strong potential short-term solution that can be implemented this year.  Contacts are in process 

with social service and temporary agencies (both agencies provide employees to Rickenbacker) to 

determine if they can identify employee origins and/or provide funding for shuttle service.  Discussions 

are ongoing with COTA as well as with other transit providers in the region (Lancaster Public Transit 

System and Pickaway Area Rural Transit) that serve nearby areas outside of COTA’s service area.  MORPC 

is reaching out to stakeholder municipalities (Obetz, Groveport, and Madison Township) to bring them up-

to-speed with our efforts, and to discuss what they could potentially bring to this initiative (long-term 

pedestrian/transit improvements to the Rickenbacker area, shuttle or other funding, etc.) 

 

Infrastructure Funding 

MORPC Attributable Funding 

ODOT, Delaware County and Columbus along with MORPC are investigating funding options for the 

Gemini Parkway extension east of the I-71 and Polaris interchange area.  ODOT is developing the project 

and is working to take the project to construction later this year to support development.  This may 

include providing MORPC-attributable funding to the project. 

 

OPWC 

Seven Natural Resource Assistance Council (NRAC) site visits were conducted to review and prepare the 

committee to score projects for Clean Ohio Conservation funding.  Projects are located in Groveport, 

Lithopolis, Columbus, Jefferson Township, and Hilliard. 

 

Transportation Review Advisory Council (TRAC) 

The application dates were released last month by ODOT. The application window opens April 1, 2014 

and closes on May 30, 2014; ODOT analysis and scoring will occur during the summer.  MORPC will work 

with members and the business community to establish regional priorities for the submittals during the 

summer as well.  During the October meeting cycle MORPC transportation committees will determine 

Central Ohio priorities.  Transportation Policy Committee adoption will be on October 9, 2014. 

 

 

http://www.cota.com/


4 
 

Transportation Investment Generating Economic Recovery (TIGER) 

The MORPC team is working with the City of Dublin and its consultant team to submit the  

I-270/US 33 interchange project for a TIGER VI grant.  The grant application is due April 28, 2014. 

 

MORPC Regional Data and Mapping Department 

Nancy Reger - nreger@morpc.org 

 

Collaboration and Joint Projects 

MORPC met with the City of Columbus to strategize how to correct problems with the Location-Based 

Response System due to data schema variations and differing software versions.  A data test is 

scheduled for mid-April after the newest GIS software version is installed.  A step-up strategy is spelled 

out for finding a solution. 

 

Columbus, ODOT and MORPC held a kick-off meeting for the regional sidewalk inventory.  The inventory is 

a GIS file that is being built by ODOT consultants.  MORPC is managing the project and the inventory will 

include the entire MPO area.  The inventory is expected to be complete by the end of the year. 

 

Data & Mapping Involvement in Projects and Programs 

Data and Mapping team members provided background data for the Dublin I-270/US 33 TIGER grant. 

 

Data and Mapping team members presented demographic information to the City of Westerville to 

provide background for its new Comprehensive Plan.  

 

The abstract on the Multi-modal Thoroughfare Analysis was accepted for presentation at the national 

Urban and Regional Information Systems Association conference, scheduled for September in New 

Orleans. 

 

Team members attended a two-day data conference hosted by OSU on Big Data where presenters 

provided insight into data governance, accountability factors, visualizations, and data sources.  

 

Modifications to existing land uses submitted by local communities through an on-line map were 

incorporated into base files.  Final touches are being put onto future land use files for review by 

communities.  These base files will be used to generate a future land use scenario for the 2016-2040 

Columbus Metropolitan Transportation Plan.  The final scenario will incorporate development concepts 

being discussed through insight 2050.  

 

A draft of the State of the Region and supporting data for the 2014 MTP Report Card are under 

development. 

 

Data sets were compiled to support the insight2050 project. 

 

Support for Members and the Community at Large    

Estimated future land use information was compiled for calculating expected traffic associated with new 

developments in southern Delaware County.  This will be used to evaluate what share of transportation 

costs should be borne by the developer.  

 

Planning and Environment Department 

Kerstin Carr - kcarr@morpc.org 

 

insight 2050 

MORPC kicked off insight2050 (formerly known as the Regional Growth Impact Analysis) on March 13, 

2014. Yaromir Steiner, CEO of Steiner + Associates and a ULI governance board member, welcomed the 

30-member steering committee as the committee's chair.  MORPC team members introduced the 

importance of insight2050 and gave some background about the project.  Joe Distefano, principal at 



5 
 

Calthorpe Associates, introduced the process and method it will use to analyze the impacts of potential 

future growth scenarios.  Over the next few months, Calthorpe will work with MORPC team members and 

other partners to collect data necessary to run the analysis.  

 

Active Transportation Planning 

Bexley and Grandview are interested in having CoGp bikesharing in their communities.  Brad Westall with 

the Columbus Recreation and Parks Department arranged a meeting to exchange information and ideas 

to achieve that goal.  Both cities want to pilot their bikeshare programs with a few stations each.  Another 

meeting will be scheduled to provide more information on how to site the stations and how to fund this 

effort.  

 

Safety Planning 

MORPC convened a meeting of all participating jurisdictions in Phase 1 of MORPC's systematic safety 

improvement program pilot.  Together with ODOT, MORPC discussed the details of evaluating sites, 

procuring, and installing three types of countermeasures that target angle crashes: LED traffic signals 

with reflective backplates, enhanced FHWA intersection signage, and LED flashing stop signs.  The 

countermeasures are expected to be installed by the end of this year. 

 

MORPC team members attended several safety meetings in March:  

 the Statewide Highway Safety Plan meeting focusing on the update of the plan and the preferred 

format 

 the Traffic Records Coordinating Committee discussed 2013 crash data, finalized at the end of 

this month, and the renewed focus on improving crash data overall   

 the Franklin County Fatality Review Board reviewed eight crashes with 13 fatalities and discussed 

the need for better driver's education, especially for people immigrating from other countries with 

different rules 

 

The City of Columbus Large School District Travel Plan distributed parent and principal surveys with 50% 

of principals responding thus far.  Incentives for parent surveys will be given away to those who filled out 

the survey. The Safe Routes to School Coordinator is now in the process of scheduling walk audits for the 

15 focus schools. The steering committee will assist with the walk audits. MORPC team members will 

attend some of the walk audits and observe the process.  The Health Impact Assessment (HIA) team 

hopes to have the literature review completed by April 15, 2014.  

 

Greenways Program 

A Central Ohio Greenways & Trails Forum was held at the Agriculture Building at Ohio University-Lancaster 

in Fairfield County with 31 people in attendance. As part of the forum, Holly Mattei with the Fairfield 

County Regional Planning Commission gave a presentation on the implementation of its Active 

Transportation & Open Space Plan.  Andrew William with the International Mountain Bicycling Association 

gave an overview of Mountain Biking Infrastructure, and Eric Oberg with Rails to Trails took the group on a 

tour of the Lancaster trail.  MORPC team members updated the group on the Economic Impact of Trails 

Study and facilitated a goal planning session.  The forum ended with a round-table discussion. 

 

The consultants for the Economic Impact of Trails study are in the process of analyzing the auditor data 

for Franklin and Delaware County properties along the Greenway Trails Network. In addition, the 

consultants developed a methodology to develop a pilot program for trail miles traveled. MORPC team 

members, project partners, and the consultants identified segments along the major greenways trails to 

be counted for seven days each between April and October. The Steering Committee members agreed to 

assist in deploying and moving the counters at the scheduled times and locations.  

 

Regional Collaboration Groups 

MORPC modified existing and identified new regional collaboration groups in an effort to make their 

meetings more useful and applicable to all attendees. Meetings are extended from 1 hour to 1 1/2  hours 



6 
 

in length, and now begin with one or more presentations on a participating entities’ projects to highlight 

its regional significance, share best practices, and/or solicit input.  

 

Another outcome of this effort was to split the Franklin-Delaware Staff Summit into the Northeast Area 

Group and the Northwest Area Group. This March, staff facilitated the first Northeast Area Group meeting 

under the new meeting format in the City of Westerville.  Bassem Bitar, a planner with Westerville, 

presented its Uptown Plan.  Participants had questions about public input, the Mindmixer website, the 

implementation schedule, and funding. The meeting ended by participants sharing project updates in a 

round-robin format.  

 

The Southeast Area Group will meet at 9 AM on April 10, 2014 at the Violet Township Hall to hear a 

presentation from Violet Township on Pickerington School District’s Safe Routes to School efforts and to 

share updates on their most significant projects. The Northwest Area Group and Southwest Area Group 

have been targeted with meeting dates this summer.  

 

Infoshare 

MORPC team members met with several communities recently for Infoshare meetings: West Jefferson, 

Shawnee Hills, and Powell.  Conversations focused on various topics including funding opportunities for 

various infrastructure-related endeavors, bike path connections and safety, and increasing residential 

growth. 

 

Sustaining Scioto 

The US Geological Survey completed the Sustaining Scioto model.  The steering committee is working 

with their staff to determine what data are most useful for the utility partners to make decisions about 

water management along with which data are necessary for the development of the adaptive 

management plan.  The next Stakeholder Advisory Committee meeting was pushed back to the end of 

May to allow for a thorough review of the data. 

 

Energy and Air Quality 

Christina O'Keeffe - cokeeffe@morpc.org  

 

Overview  

The department continues with process improvement activities through Six Sigma and Lean principles of 

the Residential Energy Efficiency program. Once process mapping of current state and areas of waste 

were identified, the project team focused on the steps involved in the Initial Inspection of Client’s home 

through delivery of work orders to contractors. Countermeasures are identified and being implemented on 

piloted basis to ensure effectiveness. Once complete, improvements will be implemented and evaluated 

and additional steps downstream in process will undergo the same process improvement activities.  

 

Air Quality   

The Air Quality work plan is finalized and submitted to Directors and the Executive Director for approval. 

New opportunities and initiatives will be evaluated within the framework established by the work plan. 

The Air Quality Program Coordinator spoke at two meetings of the Breathing Association’s Better 

Breathing Clubs, where MORPC’s Air Quality Alert services were presented and interested attendees were 

enrolled to receive air quality alerts. Team members also planned an education forum for April 30, 2014 

and drafted a media outreach plan to inform the media and local meteorologists about ozone season and 

MORPC’s resources.   

 

Energy & Air Quality Working Group 

The working group selected Dale Arnold, Director of Energy, Utility, and Local Government Policy for the 

Ohio Farm Bureau Federation as interim chair and a permanent chair will be selected at the May meeting. 

Speakers included Richard Sites of the Ohio Hospital Association, presenting on energy efficiency 

achievements in Ohio’s hospitals, along with a preview on the Regional Energy Action Plan. 

 

  



7 
 

ME3/Climate Showcase Communities  

Two additional manufacturing companies confirmed participation in the ME3 program for a total of eleven 

facilities. An article was included in Columbus Business First about the positive ME3 experience of 

Momentive Performance Materials, in which their energy assessment identified more than $250,000 in 

energy savings opportunities.  Another Central Ohio company expressed interest in the program as a 

result of the article.   

 

Regional Energy Action Plan  

Edits and comments from peer reviewers were incorporated into final draft and delivered to National 

Association of Regional Councils (NARC), which is finalizing the report for release. The report will be jointly 

released by NARC and MORPC.  

 

Residential Energy Efficiency Program  

To date in 2014, team members are busy with delivery services for income eligible households to receive 

inspections and weatherization services. More than 150 households were served through the Columbia 

Gas of Ohio's WarmChoice Program, the State of Ohio's Home Weatherization Assistance Program (HWAP) 

and Electric Partnership Program (EPP), and American Electric Power (AEP)'s Community Assistance 

Program.  

 

Production 

The team completed 50 percent of planned households with services funded through HWAP and is on 

track to fulfill program requirements by June 30, 2014. In addition, nearly 90 percent of planned 

households served to date through WarmChoice is complete. Production was affected due to required 

training and recertification by inspectors/auditors.  

 

Customer Service/Intake  

Due to colder winter temperature, the call volume of interested clients spiked to several hundred people, 

and team members are working to maintain the call log and ensure eligible clients are processed through 

the application process to receive services.  

 

Materials Management Working Group  

The working group met on March 26, 2014 and Erin Miller from the City of Columbus presented an 

update about recycling programs.  The group voted in favor of Jack Knapp from Accurate IT to fill the role 

of working group chair. Team members also worked with Ohio EPA and SWACO to finalize amendments to 

the Sustainable Events guide which is located on our website at: http://www.morpc.org/our-region/data-

maps-tools/best-practices/index.  Ohio EPA and SWACO are sharing the guide as well.  

 

(Former) Center Advisory Council  

The group met on March 14, 2014, where MORPC staff presented and finalized their recommendations 

for a top level sustainability-focused committee on the Commission.  Those recommendations will be 

incorporated into language for consideration by the By-laws Committee.  The last meeting of the Advisory 

Council is Friday, May 9, 2014 at MORPC. 

 

Green Pact  

Team members worked in coordination with the Environment and Planning Department team to plan the 

next Green Pact meeting April 2, 2014 at MORPC. Discussion items include updates from members along 

with the Green Pact’s potential role with the recently proposed committee on the Commission.  

Housing and Community Services (HCS) – March 2014 

Kathy Werkmeister – kwerkmeister@morpc.org 

 

Counseling  

Counseling team members continue to be extremely busy with new foreclosure clients. MORPC is applying 

for housing counseling funds through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  

http://www.morpc.org/our-region/data-maps-tools/best-practices/index
http://www.morpc.org/our-region/data-maps-tools/best-practices/index


8 
 

Homebuyer Education classes continue in the month of April.  The series of three sessions will be offered 

on April 2, 9, and 16, 2014 respectively.)   

MORPC team members worked with a production firm to develop two short videos about the housing 

counseling and homebuyer education programs.  The videos will be distributed through MORPC’s web site 

and social media outlets to promote these opportunities for education and assistance. 

Community Housing Improvement Program (CHIP) 

Team members are processing the final applications and managing ongoing rehab and repair projects for 

the Pataskala CHIP program.   

Housing Repair and Rehabilitation 

Rehab team members continue to take applications and manage rehabilitation work in Franklin County, 

the Weinland Park area of the City of Columbus, and the City of Pataskala.  Rehab team members are 

ramping up to begin work in the City of Columbus’ Franklinton area. 

MORPC was asked to partner with Homeport and Partners Achieving Community Transformation on a 

housing rehab program funded by the United Way of Central Ohio.  Through this program, MORPC would 

manage external repairs on five homes in the Columbus Near East/King Lincoln neighborhood. 

Rehab team members are working to complete the construction of 20 housing units for the Franklin 

County Single Family Rehabilitation program; 18 of the 20 units are completed or near completion.  

Rehab team members began intakes and applications for the next round of the Franklin County Single 

Family Rehabilitation program consisting of up to eight units. 

Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) 

Preconstruction work continues on the final NSP home purchased through the Franklin County NSP-1 

program in Prairie Township.   

 

MORPC was identified as a “Trusted Partner” by the Central Ohio Community Improvement Corporation 

(COCIC) and is applying for $60,000 in funding through COCIC to leverage with development funds such 

as the Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 (NSP 2) funds for the purpose of acquisition/rehabilitation 

or acquisition/demolition/new construction of two vacant and abandoned properties that meet eligibility 

under the NSP 2 program.   

 

Housing and Community Services Working Group (H&CS WG)  

Surveys were sent to all members requesting feedback about their community development programs 

and MORPC services.  All members are asked to complete their survey by April 9, 2014.  The working 

group is hopeful that it will be able to make recommendations regarding opportunities for the Housing 

and Community Services department by the end of June.   

 

MORPC Administration 

Shawn Hufstedler – shufstedler@morpc.org 

Deborah Murphy – dmurphy@morpc.org 

 

MORPC’s 2013 financial statement audit began in March. The Kennedy Cottrell Richards auditors were 

onsite for two weeks primarily focusing on internal control and compliance testing. They have selected the 

ODOT funded transportation program and the HUD Weinland Park projects to audit for federal compliance 

this year. They will return the last two weeks in April to finish their audit fieldwork including the audit of 

our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  

 

Finance staff is in the process of preparing a request for proposals for a new accounting system with 

assistance and input from our current system maintenance provider and MORPC team members 

throughout the agency. Our current system and system set-up is outdated. We are excited to begin the 



9 
 

process of determining our new system to provide better internal tools to manage our programs. We 

anticipate a new system implementation for 2015.  

 

Open Positions  

MORPC is recruiting for Director of Transportation Systems & Funding due to a retirement vacancy. 

Resumes are in the review process. 

 

Additionally, MORPC is recruiting for two interns, one for Transportation Systems & Funding and one for 

Planning & Environment Departments. Interviews are in process for these positions. 

 

MORPC is currently recruiting for one Case Manager for the Energy & Air Quality Department. Two Case 

Manager positions are filled with a start date of March 24 and April 7, 2014.  

 

A Senior  Administrative Assistant shared by the Planning & Environment Department and the Mapping & 

Data Department started March 24, 2014. The Administrative & Marketing Coordinator for the Energy & 

Air Quality Department also started March 24, 2014.  

 

Diversity Training 

MORPC team members are scheduled to participate in training called “Learning the Language of Multiple 

Generations” as part of MORPC’s continuing diversity & inclusion efforts.  Commission members are 

welcome to attend the training on April 8, 2014 from 1 pm to 5 pm, by contacting Deborah Murphy at 

dmurphy@morpc.org.  



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

2013 Online Communications Plan 
Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  



2 

 

MORPC 2013 Online Communications Plan 
Executive Summary 

 

vision & purpose
 

 
The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) embraced significant changes in 2013, with 

new leadership, a new organizational structure, and a refreshed focus on membership. MORPC’s 

Public & Government Affairs department also saw change, redefining goals and staff roles, and 

focusing in on promoting the agency, attracting and retaining members, government affairs, and 

community engagement.  

 

MORPC’s 2013 Online Communications Plan outlined goals and strategies in the areas of the Website, 

Membership, Education, Logistics and Social Media. The agency secured a new Content Management 

System (CMS) and overhauled the website from content to design to interactivity to mobile 

responsiveness. The project team placed a strong focus on membership, incorporating a secured 

members site and an interactive calendar where members could promote community events.  

 

MORPC continued to cultivate knowledge internally with the creation of an Online Advertising Guide for 

staff, outlining the latest options and best practices. Additionally, online communications planning 

efforts were shared with Executive Committee and an area for online communications updates was 

added to the Monthly Commission Report.  

 

Efficient online communications management resulted in a set of policies and procedures to guide 

internal processes, and recurring meetings with website editors and the Communications Team 

ensured information was being shared across platforms. MORPC expanded its social media presence 

with the use of Instagram and LinkedIn accounts, while closely monitoring and improving existing 

campaigns.  

 

MORPC’s online communications platforms serve as forums for regional discussion as well as 

informational resources for communities, organizations and individuals through drawing attention to 

regional issues, valuable opportunities and local accomplishments. It is vital that MORPC continues to 

serve the region in this way through continually enhancing its online presence.  

 

The Online Communications Plan aims to further engage MORPC's online audiences while enhancing 

MORPC's relevancy through strategic online communications that highlight MORPC’s programs, 

services, events and accomplishments, positioning MORPC as a resource and advocate for the region, 

and as a leader in the online arena. The Online Communications Plan will be updated with specific 

goals each year along with an Executive Summary outlining how those goals were met.  

 

audience  
 

 

EXTERNAL 
Funders and Potential Funders 

Partner and Peer Organizations 

Clients 

INTERNAL 

MORPC Board and Represented Jurisdictions 

MORPC Officers 

MORPC Employees 



3 

 

Potential Members 

Local Governments 

Volunteers 

The Public at Large 

Media 

goals & strategies
 

 

WEBSITE 

Updating the morpc.org website was a major priority in 2013. The website had last been updated in 

2007 and was in dire need of a redesign and improved internal editing procedures. MORPC’s Online 

Communications Coordinator and IT Manager collaborated throughout the project to take both 

communications and technology needs into consideration.  

MORPC’s existing content management system (CMS) was a custom-built system that was very 

outdated and difficult for staff to use. After researching content management best practices and 

available systems, MORPC purchased and installed a new CMS featuring custom workflow 

management, 24-hour support and streamlined editing and design capabilities. 

The Online Communications Coordinator worked with MORPC leadership to design a more logical and 

organized sitemap for the website. The existing sitemap was organized by department, which made 

sense internally but not for the majority of visitors. Instead the sitemap was redesigned from an 

external user’s perspective, including three new sections (Studies & Plans; Data, Maps & Tools; and 

Services) that provide comprehensive resources that cross departments. The new sitemap was 

reduced from 568 pages to just over 400, eliminating outdated information and simplifying user 

navigation.  

MORPC hired a graphic design firm to redesign the look of the website and develop interactive 

elements including mobile-responsiveness, a community calendar and integrated social media. The 

Online Communications Coordinator and IT Manager worked with the firm to direct and implement the 

design. The process was completed following a detailed timeline and the new website was launched 

January 9, 2014.  

 

MEMBERSHIP 

This year MORPC endeavored to better serve MORPC Membership through online communications 

resources. This included a new Members website on morpc.org. The Online Communications 

Coordinator worked with the Member Services Coordinator to identify important information and 

resources Members could easily access on a secured website. The new website includes meeting 

materials, legislative reports, signed resolutions, grant opportunities and other resources.  

Members also have the opportunity to share their communities’ news, events and accomplishments 

with MORPC’s established online audience. The Online Communications Coordinator and Member 

Services Coordinator are collaborating to identify and share Members’ desired promotions in MORPC’s 

e-newsletter and on social media. Members can also post events on the new interactive community 

calendar on the morpc.org website.  

 

EDUCATION 



4 

 

Another goal in 2013 was to engage internal MORPC stakeholders to promote awareness of online 

communications trends. An Online Advertising Guide was created as a resource for staff, describing 

best practices to propel outreach efforts in the digital age. The Guide includes information on online 

advertising options through search engines, music streaming services, social media and local news 

outlets. The information is presented visually in the form of an infographic and is available on the 

MORPC intranet.  

MORPC’s online communications efforts were also shared with Executive Committee members. The 

Online Communications Coordinator presented goals and strategies of the Online Communications 

Plan at the July Executive Committee meeting, and shared online communications updates in Monthly 

Commission Reports.  

 

MANAGEMENT 

MORPC stayed ahead of the curve in 2013 through efficient online communications management. The 

Plan included a set of policies and procedures to guide internal processes, including website updates, 

social media messaging, and guidelines for individual campaigns.  

Recurring web editor meetings were established to address editing procedures, best practices and 

content updates. The meetings have helped keep editing staff informed and keep web content up to 

date.  

Online platforms were monitored closely through quarterly analytics reports. High-performing platforms 

were watched closely and the most engaging content was recorded. Platforms or campaigns that 

suffered or obsolete were discontinued. One new campaign was launched and eight campaigns were 

discontinued.  

 

SOCIAL MEDIA 

MORPC is always seeking ways to stay current on the latest social media trends and best practices 

while continuing to grow existing audiences. Agency social media accounts now include Facebook, 

Twitter, Google+, Vimeo and, new in 2013, Instagram and LinkedIn.  

Leading up to the 2013 State of the Region Luncheon, MORPC launched its new Instagram account. 

Social media users were asked to submit photos from around the region that showed what the event’s 

theme, “Our People, This Place, Right Now” meant to them. The interactive challenge increased 

engagement across platforms by asking participants to tag MORPC’s Instagram, Facebook and Twitter 

accounts. Over 40 photos were submitted and Instagram followers grew past 100.  

Selected photos from the campaign were displayed during the event and were used to create 

handouts to promote MORPC’s social media accounts. The handouts were used throughout the year at 

outreach events.  

MORPC also began posting on its LinkedIn account. The number of followers increased from 337 to 

430, reaching an important professional user-base. 

 

breakdown  
 

 

TOP MORPC.ORG WEBPAGES 
Based on number of page views in 2013 

 

1. morpc.org/ – 82,559 



5 

 

2. morpc.org /info_center/job_opportunities/jobs.asp – 26,543 

3. morpc.org /info_center/news_events/current_news_events.asp – 13,662 

4. morpc.org /info_center/dataport/dataport.asp – 11,004 

5. morpc.org /info_center/about_morpc/main.asp – 10,235 

6. morpc.org /info_center/dataport/transportation_traffic.asp – 8,300 

7. morpc.org /energy/center/main.asp – 7,971 

8. morpc.org /housing/housing_rehab/housing_rehab.asp – 7,519 

9. morpc.org /transportation/bicycle_pedestrian/main.asp – 7,387 

10. morpc.org /info_center/rfps_rfqs/rfps_rfqs.asp – 6,915 

 

TOP FACEBOOK POSTS 
Based on total reach in 2013 

 

Date Posted Reach Clicks Message Type 

10/31 

9:34 4108 512 

MORPC works a resource and facilitator for local communities in Central 

Ohio on a range of issues affecting our residents and businesses. One of 

these functions is to collectively recommend a unified date and time for 

Halloween Trick-or-Treating for communities who choose to opt in.   

Unfortunately, the weather is forecasted to be potentially severe later 

tonight during the original hours which may result in unsafe conditions 

for trick or treating due to high winds and rain. After consultation this 

morning with many of our local communities in Central Ohio, MORPC 

and many of its members are announcing the rescheduled Trick-or-Treat 

hours of 5:30 to 7:00 p.m. tonight.   We strongly urge parents and 

residents who choose to participate in this annual tradition to stay alert 

to changing weather conditions to ensure everyone remains safe.  

Please contact your local community for official dates and times. Visit 

www.morpc.org for a list of rescheduled dates and times as we hear 

from communities. 

Status 

Update 

4/9 

 6:59 2548 95 

The Franklin Soil and Water Conservation District has launched its 

Columbus GreenSpot Rain Barrel program to encourage homeowners to 

install rain barrels. A 45-gallon rain barrel is just $55: 

http://stormwater.franklinswcd.org/ Photo 

3/19  

13:03 1978 155 

It may not feel like it but tomorrow is the first day of spring! Get ready for 

warmer weather by checking out our interactive Columbus Metro Bike 

Map at http://bit.ly/morpcbikemap or by picking up a copy at your local 

Trek Bicycle or Bicycle One store Photo 

8/14 

 16:00 1580 170 

A new map shows racial diversity and population density using colored 

dots representing one person each. In the pictured portion of Central 

Ohio, the result is a colorful depiction of our diversity. Check it out at 

http://bit.ly/racialdotmap Photo 

5/2 

6:17 1453 41 

Get out and enjoy the spring weather by joining MORPC at tomorrow's 

Clean Air Fair! www.cleanairfair.org Photo 

10/8 

 10:05 1360 74 

Congratulations to Josh Knights, Executive Director of the Ohio Nature 

Conservancy and the Marion Correctional Institution for receiving this 

year’s Green Region Awards! #morpc Photo 

3/20 1360 69 
What's your favorite mode of active transportation? MORPC believes 

active transportation or "human powered" infrastructure is a crucial 
Photo 



6 

 

 7:59 component in our ongoing quest to improve and protect the 

environment, local economies and the health and welfare of our people. 

8/26 

 6:45 1071 43 

See the newly released Benchmarking Central Ohio report to see how 

the region stacks up against peer communities across the country in 

areas like transportation, entrepreneurship and economy. The annual 

report is prepared by Community Research Partners and sponsored by 

the Columbus Partnership and The Columbus Foundation: 

http://bit.ly/13SPgIS Photo 

10/30 

 8:50 878 165 

Each year MORPC recommends a unified date for Halloween Trick-or-

Treating throughout Central Ohio.   When October 31 falls on a Monday, 

Tuesday, Wednesday or Thursday, Trick-or-Treat is held that day. If it falls 

on the weekend nights of Friday, Saturday or Sunday, Trick-or-Treat is 

held the Thursday prior.   This year Trick-or-Treating will be held 

tomorrow, unless your community chose a different date or decides to 

reschedule due to inclement weather. Please contact your local 

community to find out when it will be. Happy Halloween! Photo 

5/20 

 11:09 865 139 

Each year MORPC hosts the event with the goal of familiarizing 

downtown employees with information on respiratory health, green 

technologies and fuels, healthy lifestyles and transportation choices. 

This year the Clean Air Fair was held Friday, May 3 in the Battelle Grand 

Plaza in the Arena District. Tag yourself in your photo from our 

photobooth! Photo 

 

TOP TWEETS 
Most re-tweeted Twitter posts 

 
Date 

Posted 
Re-

Tweets Message 

3/29 

8:28 8 
#Columbus ranked 2nd for #jobs creation in 2012 according to a new report 

http://t.co/d6FRpazhIn 

10/31 

9:40 8 
Local Communities Re-Schedule Trick-or-Treat to 5:30–7:00 p.m. – Parents Urged to 

Stay Alert of Weather Conditions: http://t.co/8LTJhLV6mv 

1/24 

6:24 7 
Columbus is named a Top 7 #IntelligentCommunity for collaboration w govts, 

institutions, businesses and nonprofits http://t.co/vX3LnYd4 

4/03 

15:01 7 
Parts of I-71 will be closed tonight and through the weekend for construction on the 

I-71/670 interchange: http://t.co/EmjFh87uay 

7/17 

10:13 5 
@COTABus is looking at abandoned railways and other new opportunities for transit 

routes #cmcforum 

8/15 

13:04 5 
What's your vision for "overlooked" spaces? Visit the @centercbus website at 

http://t.co/4FEFAEGn7K to submit your ideas #cbusFOTO 

1/08 

11:03 4 
An outsider's perspective of Columbus by the Colorado Springs Business Journal 

http://t.co/HmlXnezl 

1/30 
4 

The City of Columbus is recalibrating road sensors to detect cyclists at traffic lights 



7 

 

5:24 http://t.co/VxuhDqkz 

3/15 

7:03 4 
@FranklinCoOhio has surpassed the fast-growing Delaware County as the state's 

leader in population growth: http://t.co/Q4FAflHljS 

6/21 

11:36 4 
MORPC is issuing Air Quality Alerts for Friday and Saturday in #centralohio: 

http://t.co/EYqkti31UR 

 

 

NEW CAMPAIGNS 
 

Facebook – MORPC RideSolutions 

 

DISCONTINUED CAMPAIGNS 
 

Facebook – Central Ohio Car Free Day 

Facebook – Five Days of Freedom 

Twitter – @morpchousing 

Website – carfreedaycolumbus.org  

Website – greatercolumbusgreenmap.org 

Website – keepourwatersclean.org 

Blog – Regional News & Views 

E-Newsletter – Center for Energy & Environment Updates 

 

platforms  
 

 

WEBSITES 

INTERNAL EXTERNAL (hosted by MORPC)  

morpc.org coe-scexpo.org 

centralohiogreenways.com datasourcecolumbus.org 

centralohiolocalfood.org rideshareohio.com/org  

 

E-NEWSLETTERS 

Regional eSource  

MORPC Events 

 

SOCIAL MEDIA 

FACEBOOK TWITTER INSTAGRAM 

facebook.com/morpc twitter.com/morpc instagram.com/centralohio 

facebook.com/osuvanpool twitter.com/morpc_green  

facebook.com/centralohiogreenways twitter.com/ridesolutions1 VIMEO 

facebook.com/centralohiolocalfood  vimeo.com/morpc 

facebook.com/morpcridesolutions GOOGLE+  

 gplus.to/morpc FLICKR 

LINKEDIN  flickr.com/morpc 

MORPC Page   

Lifelong Communities Group   



8 

 

YOUTUBE   

morpc1   

morpcsafety   

morpcridesolutions   

morpcairquality   

morpc111   

 

analyses 
 

 

Analyses are conducted quarterly with attention to statistics and trends using the following resources:  
 

WEBSITE 
Google Analytics  

 

 

 

E-NEWSLETTERS 
MailChimp reports 

 

 

 

SOCIAL MEDIA 

Facebook Insights  

HootSuite Analytics 

Number fans, followers 

Engagement

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

2014 Online Communications Plan  

Strategies for Streamlining Agency-Wide Online Communications Efforts in 2014 

 
 

 

 

  



2 

 

MORPC 2014 Online Communications Plan  

Strategies for Streamlining Agency-Wide Online Communications Efforts in 2014 

 
vision & purpose

 

 
The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) embraced significant changes in 2013, with 

new leadership, a new organizational structure, and a refreshed focus on membership. MORPC’s 

Public & Government Affairs department also saw change, redefining goals and staff roles, and 

focusing in on promoting the agency, attracting and retaining members, government affairs, and 

community engagement.  

 

MORPC’s 2013 Online Communications Plan outlined goals and strategies in the areas of the Website, 

Membership, Education, Logistics and Social Media. The agency secured a new Content Management 

System (CMS) and overhauled the website from content to design to interactivity to mobile 

responsiveness. The project team placed a strong focus on membership, incorporating a secured 

members site and an interactive calendar where members could promote community events.  

 

MORPC continued to cultivate knowledge internally with the creation of an Online Advertising Guide for 

staff, outlining the latest options and best practices. Additionally, online communications planning 

efforts were shared with Executive Committee and an area for online communications updates was 

added to the Monthly Commission Report.  

 

Efficient online communications management resulted in a set of policies and procedures to guide 

internal processes, and recurring meetings with website editors and the Communications Team 

ensured information was being shared across platforms. MORPC expanded its social media presence 

with the use of Instagram and LinkedIn accounts, while closely monitoring and improving existing 

campaigns.  

 

MORPC’s online communications platforms serve as forums for regional discussion as well as 

informational resources for communities, organizations and individuals through drawing attention to 

regional issues, valuable opportunities and local accomplishments. It is vital that MORPC continues to 

serve the region in this way through continually enhancing its online presence.  

 

The Online Communications Plan aims to further engage MORPC's online audiences while enhancing 

MORPC's relevancy through strategic online communications that highlight MORPC’s programs, 

services, events and accomplishments, positioning MORPC as a resource and advocate for the region, 

and as a leader in the online arena. The Online Communications Plan will be updated with specific 

goals each year along with an Executive Summary outlining how those goals were met.  

 

audience  
 

 

EXTERNAL 
Funders and Potential Funders 

Partner and Peer Organizations 

Clients 

Potential Members 

INTERNAL 

MORPC Board and Represented Jurisdictions 

MORPC Officers 

MORPC Employees 



3 

 

Local Governments 

Volunteers 

The Public at Large 

Media 

goals & strategies
 

 

ONLINE CAMPAIGNS 

GOAL: Stay current on the latest digital communications trends and best practices while continuing to 

grow existing audiences  

STRATEGIES: 

 Redesign the Regional eSource e-newsletter to reflect the agency’s refreshed branding 

 Update the layout of Regional eSource to reflect the latest e-newsletter best practices 

 Utilize social media advertising opportunities to elevate important messages throughout the year 

 Create customized graphics to share on social media that are eye-catching and engaging to 

promote important messages  

 Integrate social media at events 

 Promote social media networks offline by creating printed pieces that can be distributed at events 

and in-person outreach opportunities 

 Research and implement new social media accounts as they become relevant to the agency  

 Seek ways to grow followers 

 

MEMBERSHIP 

GOAL: Better serve MORPC Members through online communications resources  

STRATEGIES: 

 Further develop the morpc.org Member Login section based on member feedback  

 Conduct a social media workshop for local governments to assist with the creation and/or 

development of social media accounts 

 Work with the Member Services Coordinator to promote MORPC’s value to Members  

 Promote Members’ news, events and accomplishments through agency platforms 

 Assist Franklin County Engineer’s Office in developing a new website using the agency CMS, and 

explore similar partnerships with other members 

 

EDUCATION 

GOAL: Promote knowledge of and involvement in online communications amongst MORPC's internal 

audiences through educational opportunities  

STRATEGIES: 

 Update MORPC’s Social Media Policy to reflect best practices and hold a staff training 



4 

 

 Work with program staff to optimize individual online campaigns 

 Present Online Communications Policies & Procedures to new MORPC employees with MORPC 101 

info sessions 

 Present to Executive Committee and Leadership Team on Plans and Progress 

 

MANAGEMENT 

GOAL: Optimize agency-wide online communications efforts through efficient internal communication 

and management 

STRATEGIES: 

 Develop an editorial calendar that ensures agency programs and services are fairly represented 

 Update internal procedures for communicating messages online  

 Schedule website editor meetings to ensure online content is up-to-date  

 Monitor and analyze MORPC’s online communications efforts 

 Utilize the Communications Team for coordination and awareness of efforts 

 Provide regular updates on efforts in the Monthly Commission Report 

 

WEBSITE 

GOAL: Optimize the agency content management system (CMS)  

STRATEGIES: 

 Migrate website campaigns hosted on external systems into the CMS 

 Migrate the agency intranet into the CMS 

 Manage a pilot CMS license agreement and offer license agreements with members if successful 

platforms  
 

 

WEBSITES 

INTERNAL EXTERNAL (hosted by MORPC)  

morpc.org coe-scexpo.org 

centralohiogreenways.com datasourcecolumbus.org 

centralohiolocalfood.org rideshareohio.com/org  

 

E-NEWSLETTERS 

Regional eSource  

MORPC Events 

 

SOCIAL MEDIA 

FACEBOOK TWITTER INSTAGRAM 

facebook.com/morpc twitter.com/morpc instagram.com/centralohio 

facebook.com/osuvanpool twitter.com/morpc_green  

facebook.com/centralohiogreenways twitter.com/ridesolutions1 VIMEO 



5 

 

facebook.com/centralohiolocalfood  vimeo.com/morpc 

facebook.com/morpcridesolutions GOOGLE+  

 gplus.to/morpc  

   

LINKEDIN YOUTUBE  

MORPC Page morpc1  

Lifelong Communities Group morpcsafety  

 morpcridesolutions  

FLICKR morpcairquality  

flickr.com/morpc morpc111  

 

analyses 
 

 

Analyses are conducted quarterly with attention to statistics and trends using the following resources:  
 

WEBSITE 
Google Analytics  

 

 

 

E-NEWSLETTERS 
MailChimp reports 

 

 

 

SOCIAL MEDIA 

Facebook Insights  

HootSuite Analytics 

Number fans, followers 

Engagement 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

William Murdock 

Executive Director 

 

DATE: 

 

April 4, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 09-14: “ACCEPTING MADISON TOWNSHIP 

(FRANKLIN COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)” 

 

 

 

The Madison Township Trustees met March 19, 2014 and voted to authorize the Township 

to become a member of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC). The 

attached resolution accepts Madison Township as a member of MORPC, which will help 

meet the desire of MORPC’s membership to continue to grow the organization for the 

benefit of a stronger Central Ohio region. 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 09-14 

 

 



RESOLUTION 09-14 

 

“ACCEPTING MADISON TOWNSHIP (FRANKLIN COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)” 

 

WHEREAS, Madison Township recognizes the need for collaborative, cooperative planning in order to 

ensure continued growth and prosperity; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC’s mission is to be the regional voice and a catalyst for sustainability and econom-

ic prosperity in order to secure a competitive advantage for Central Ohio; and 

 

WHEREAS, Madison Township has petitioned for membership in MORPC; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of MORPC’s members to continue to grow for the benefit of strong collabo-

ration on regional issues; and  

 

WHEREAS, Madison Township will be assessed $3,969 pro-rated dues based on 2014 population; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Madison Township Trustees voted to join MORPC and passed a resolution to accept 

the conditions of membership contained in MORPC’s Articles of Agreement; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That Madison Township is accepted as a member of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission. 

 

Section 2. That the Bylaws provide that two (2) representatives for Madison Township are eligi-

ble to serve as voting members at the MORPC Commission meetings. 

 

Section 3. That Madison Township shall be entitled to the same regular services of MORPC as 

other members and that any special services will be purchased by the township 

based on standard MORPC rates.   

 

Section 4. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 5.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

                                                                                

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: April 10, 2014 

Submitted by: William Murdock, Executive Director 

Prepared by:  Eileen Leuby, Member Services Coordinator, Public & Government Affairs 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: April 10, 2014 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

William Murdock 

Executive Director 

 

DATE: 

 

April 4, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 13-14: “ACCEPTING THE SOLID WASTE  

AUTHORITY OF CENTRAL OHIO (SWAC0) AS AN ASSOCIATE (NON-

VOTING) MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING 

COMMISSION (MORPC)” 
 
This resolution accepts the Solid Waste Authority of Central Ohio (SWACO) as an associate member 

of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC).  SWACO has expressed interest in joining 

MORPC.  Ohio Revised Code 713.21 allows other units of local government to participate in Regional 

Planning Commissions (RPCs) such as MORPC: “After creation of a regional planning commission, 

school districts, special districts, authorities, and any other units of local government may participate 

in the regional planning commission, upon terms agreed upon by the planning commissions and 

boards.”   

 

SWACO would further enhance MORPC’s mission, accomplishments and goals; promote stronger 

partnerships between MORPC and its members and key community stakeholders; and create 

opportunities to further advance regional cooperation efforts. For these reasons, SWACO is 

considered a good candidate as an associate member in MORPC.   

 

The dues for the Solid Waste Authority of Central Ohio Associate (non-voting) member of the Mid-

Ohio Regional Planning Commission MORPC) will be assessed at the pro-rated rate of $375.  A 

summary of the benefits for Associate Members is attached to Resolution 13-14.  

 

Attachment:  Resolution 13-14 

 



RESOLUTION 13-14 

 

“ACCEPTING THE SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY OF CENTRAL OHIO (SWACO) AS AN ASSOCIATE (NON-

VOTING) MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)” 

 

WHEREAS, SWACO has expressed interest in joining the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

(MORPC) as an Associate (Non-Voting) Member; and 

 

WHEREAS, SWACO is eligible for associate membership by its standing as a unit of local government 

under ORC 713.21; and 

 

WHEREAS, SWACO would further enhance MORPC’s mission, accomplishments and goals; promote 

stronger partnerships between MORPC and its members and key community stakeholders; and cre-

ate opportunities to further advance regional cooperation efforts; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That SWACO is accepted as an Associate Member of MORPC effective April 10, 2014. 

 

Section 2. That SWACO is an associate member, effective for 9 months, eligible for renewal on 

an annual basis, with the approval of and under conditions established by the Com-

mission. 

 

Section 3. That the dues for SWACO will be assessed at a pro-rated rate of $375. 

 

Section 4. That SWACO shall be entitled to the Associate Member Benefits as outlined in the 

attached document “Associate Membership”. 

 

Section 5. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 6.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 

 

_________________________________________  

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

Effective date: April 10, 2014 

Submitted by: William Murdock, Executive Director 

Prepared by:  Eileen Leuby, Membership Coordinator 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: April 10, 2014 

 

Attachment:  Associate Member Benefit Guide     



Resolution 13-14 

Attachment 

Page 1 

 
Associate Member Benefit Guide (Rev. Jan. 2014) 

 

Associate members shall have one representative as may be established by the COMMISSION.  

 

Associate members shall contribute at the rate and in the manner as may be established at the time they become a 

participant, but this rate and manner may be revised by the COMMISSION from time to time. 

 

Associate members are other units of local government (as enabled in O.R.C. 713.21).  School districts, special 

districts, authorities, and any other units of local government may participate in the regional planning commission, 

upon terms agreed upon by the COMMISSION. 

 

     Associate Member Benefits 

 

 Recognized as a member of the Commission with one non-voting representative to participate in the 

Commission board meetings and activities  

 Opportunity to serve on many of the MORPC work groups   

 Opportunity to chair MORPC work groups  

 Access to a members-only section of web site  

 Receive monthly legislative updates and eligible to participate in MORPC’s government affairs and advocacy 

efforts  

 Recognition as a member in MORPC’s brochures, documents, and website  

 Eligible to receive “members only” event discounts and regional news updates  

 Ability to post significant events in the partner section of the MORPC website calendar  

 Ability to submit significant events in the Consent agenda Partner Calendar for Commission Meetings  

 

All MORPC Members 

 

 Discuss important regional issues 

 Network with local leaders to discuss common problems 

 Create solutions to shared regional challenges 

 Access to Funding Database      

 Notification of new grant opportunities 

 Educational Forums, Training and Seminars 

 Municipal salary and benefits surveys. Annual data from member governments on position structure, 

employee benefits, and salaries 

 Air quality forecasts 

 Blind Walk Audit 

 RideSolutions to qualified applicants 

 Weatherization to qualified applicants 

 Housing assistance to qualified applicants based on grant availability  

First time homebuyers counseling 

Foreclosure counseling 

Rehabilitation 

Demolition   

Potential future homebuyers 

Mortgage assistance 

 Legislative Advocacy on selected Local, State and Federal Issues 

 Utilize bike and traffic count equipment per availability 

 Contract for specialized  

 services in data and mapping 

 



Resolution 13-14 

Attachment 

Page 2 

 
Certain rights, privileges, and responsibilities are restricted exclusively to full members and would be unavailable to 

Associate Members:  

 Voting on the Commission  

 Holding office on the Commission  

 Membership on the Administrative Committee  

 Chairing committees or subcommittees of the Commission or Administrative Committee  

 Membership on the Policy Committee  

 

 

(Membership benefits are subject to change based on the actions of the Commission). 



Resolution 12-14 Memo 

Page 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Kathy L. Werkmeister, Director 

Housing and Community Services 

 

DATE: 

 

April 4, 2014 

MORPC 

STRATEGY: 

 

Facilitating a comprehensive housing and community 

development agenda  

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 12-14: “TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CENTRAL 

OHIO COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION (COCIC) FOR 

THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE TRUSTED PARTNER PROGRAM 

FOR $60,000 AND TO ENTER INTO TWO TRUSTED PARTNER 

PROJECT AGREEMENTS FOR $30,000 EACH” 

  

 

This resolution authorizes the executive director to enter into a general program agreement 

with the Central Ohio Community Improvement Corporation (COCIC) for the Trusted Partner 

Program.  This program will provide $30,000 per unit for two housing projects for a total of 

$60,000.  After the general program agreement has been signed and when the two housing 

units are identified, MORPC will enter into project agreements with COCIC to receive the 

$30,000 per house.     

 

These funds will be leveraged with development funds such as the Neighborhood 

Stabilization Program 2 (NSP 2) funds for the purpose of acquisition/rehabilitation or 

acquisition/demolition/new construction of two vacant and abandoned properties that meet 

eligibility under the NSP 2 program.   

 

COCIC is organized under Chapters 1724 and 5722 of the Ohio Revised Code and is 

designated as the county land reutilization corporation for Franklin County, Ohio; it is 

operated for the express purposes of facilitating the reutilization and rehabilitation of 

vacant, abandoned, tax-foreclosed, or other property and of promoting economic and 

housing development in Franklin County.   

 



Resolution 12-14 Memo 

Page 2 

 

 

COCIC has undertaken a strategic market intervention program (the “Trusted Partner 

Program”) for the purpose of stabilizing or improving market support for housing by selecting 

trusted partners, including MORPC, who are engaged in the total rehabilitation of blighted 

homes or the construction of new homes in blighted neighborhoods, primarily with the intent 

to sell those homes to owner-occupants.   

 

COCIC will allocate $30,000 per house to MORPC to undertake the development of two 

housing units through this program in 2014.    MORPC intends to develop two housing units 

utilizing COCIC funds and Columbus/Franklin County NSP 2 funds once these funds become 

available.  To be eligible to participate, COCIC has asked MORPC to enter into a general 

program agreement for the Trusted Partner Program. Once each housing unit is identified for 

development, COCIC will ask MORPC to enter into a specific project agreement that will 

outline the terms of the development of a particular unit.   

 

MORPC intends to apply to Franklin County and the City of Columbus for NSP 2 program 

income funds to be used as the primary funds to acquire and rehab or acquire/demolish 

and build two houses in NSP 2 target areas.  The $30,000 from the COCIC will be used as 

match funds and have no stipulation in terms of how the funds are used in the project as 

long as they result in one completed unit within the designated time period, which is 

estimated to be two years.  MORPC anticipates that these houses will be developed in Mifflin 

Township or Whitehall as these were the target areas identified for MORPC’s original NSP 2 

grant program.   

 

Since 2009 under the Neighborhood Stabilization Programs (NSP 1 and NSP 2), MORPC 

developed a total of 13 properties in Franklin County, acquiring abandoned and foreclosed 

properties and rehabbing them to the highest sustainability standards (Accessibility, Water 

Conservation, Air Quality, Resource Conscious, Energy-Efficient).  In all, MORPC administered 

a total of five NSP programs in seven central Ohio counties and completed 93 projects, 

which included rehabbing 28 foreclosed or abandoned properties, building five new homes, 

and demolishing 60 blighted properties. 

 

Attachment: Resolution 12-14 

 



RESOLUTION 12-14 

 

“TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CENTRAL 

OHIO COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION (COCIC) FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 

TRUSTED PARTNER PROGRAM FOR $60,000 AND TO ENTER INTO TWO TRUSTED PARTNER PROJECT 

AGREEMENTS FOR $30,000 EACH” 

 

WHEREAS, Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) has administered a housing develop-

ment program since 2009, completing 93 projects total and rehabbing and rebuilding 13 vacant and 

abandoned or foreclosed houses in Franklin County; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Central Ohio Community Improvement Corporation (COCIC) is an Ohio nonprofit des-

ignated as the county land reutilization corporation for Franklin County for the purpose of rehabilitat-

ing and reutilizing vacant, abandoned, and tax-foreclosed properties and has undertaken the Trusted 

Partner Program to encourage partners to rehabilitate blighted properties or build new homes in 

blighted neighborhoods; and 

 

WHEREAS, the COCIC has designated MORPC as a trusted partner and intends to enter into agree-

ment with MORPC to document the terms and conditions of both parties’ rights and responsibilities 

under the Trusted Partner Program;  

 

WHEREAS,  MORPC is eligible to receive an allocation of $60,000 for the development of two houses 

under the Trusted Partner Program Agreement and is eligible to receive these funds through two Pro-

ject Agreements of $30,000 each; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the executive director is authorized to enter into the COCIC Trusted Partner Pro-

gram Agreement for the implementation of the Trusted Partner Program for up to 

$60,000. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to enter into two Trusted Partner Project 

Agreements of $30,000 each for the development of two blighted housing units. 

 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to approve one or more extensions for per-

formance of services under the foregoing agreements and change orders for 

amounts up to the financial authorization levels in the MORPC bylaws without fur-

ther authorization from this commission. 

 

Section 4. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 5. That this commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this commission. 

  



Resolution 12-14 

Page 2 

 

 

 

_________________________________________  

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

Effective date: April 10, 2014 

Submitted by: Kathy L. Werkmeister, Director, Housing and Community Services 

Prepared by:  Kathy L. Werkmeister, Director, Housing and Community Services 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: April 10, 2014 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Kathy L. Werkmeister, Director 

Housing and Community Services 

 

DATE: 

 

April 4, 2014 

MORPC 

STRATEGY: 

 

Facilitating a comprehensive housing and community 

development agenda 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 14-14: “TO AFFIRM THE MID-OHIO 

REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION’S SUPPORT OF FAIR 

HOUSING AND PROMOTING FAIR AND EQUAL HOUSING IN THE 

CENTRAL OHIO AREA” 

 

 

This month marks the 46th anniversary of the Fair Housing Act and the celebration of 

National Fair Housing Month.  MORPC joins federal, state, and local agencies and our 

Central Ohio community in remembering why the Fair Housing Act was passed in 1968 and 

commits to educating Central Ohio residents on their housing rights. 

 

Under the Federal Fair Housing Law, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Fair Housing 

Act), it is illegal to deny housing to any person because of race, color, religion, sex, familial 

status, physical or mental disabilities, or national origin.  Under the Ohio Fair Housing Act, it 

is illegal to deny housing to any person because of race, color, religion, sex, disability, 

familial status, national origin, ancestry, or military status. 

 

MORPC has operated major housing rehabilitation and minor home repair programs for low-

and moderate-income families for more than 30 years.  MORPC has also administered a 

homeownership counseling and down payment assistance program since 1994 and a 

default and foreclosure prevention program since 2006.  In addition, MORPC administers 

the Joint Columbus and Franklin County Housing Advisory Board, which reviews mortgage 

revenue bond requests for affordable housing developments to be approved by the Franklin 

County Board of Commissioners. 

 

MORPC receives federal, state, and local public funds to administer these housing 

programs, which serve Central Ohio residents with a diverse range of backgrounds.  The 



Resolution 14-14 Memo 

Page 2 

 

 

United States Congress has adopted a national policy to provide, within constitutional 

limitations, for fair housing throughout the United States.  MORPC is committed to support 

fair housing laws and provide public information on fair housing and equal housing lending 

to applicants of all agency housing programs.   

 

This resolution recognizes the preservation of the fair housing rights of the residents of 

Central Ohio and links to MORPC’s mission of economic prosperity, the priority of being a 

leader in regional, state, and national policies, as well as the strategy to expand and sustain 

the availability of affordable housing. 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 14-14 

 



RESOLUTION 14-14 

 

“TO AFFIRM THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION’S SUPPORT OF FAIR HOUSING AND 

PROMOTING FAIR AND EQUAL HOUSING IN THE CENTRAL OHIO AREA” 

 

WHEREAS, the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) supports the principle of equal 

rights and privileges for all citizens and desires to give meaning to the laws of this state and the 

United States; and 

 

WHEREAS, under the Federal Fair Housing Law, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 as amended 

(known as the “Fair Housing Act”), it is illegal to deny housing to any person because of race, color, 

religion, sex, familial status, physical or mental disabilities, or national origin; and 

 

WHEREAS, under the State of Ohio Fair Housing Law, Section 4112.02(H) of the Ohio Revised Code, 

it is illegal to deny housing to any person because of race, color, religion, sex, familial status, physical 

or mental disabilities, national origin, ancestry, or military status; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission supports fair housing laws and provides pub-

lic information on fair and equal housing to applicants of MORPC’s housing programs; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That it is the policy of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission to promote fair 

housing and equal lending, and provide fair housing materials to all applicants of 

MORPC’s housing programs. 

 

Section 2. This resolution assists in the preservation of the fair housing rights of the residents of 

Central Ohio and links to MORPC’s mission of economic prosperity, the priority of be-

ing a leader in regional, state, and national policies, as well as the strategy to expand 

and sustain the availability of affordable housing. 

 

Section 3. The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission shall publicize this resolution and the 

agency’s commitment to fair housing to its employees and the general public. 

 

Section 4. The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission shall post a Fair Housing Law poster, 

which includes the Equal Housing Opportunity logo, in a public location of the MORPC 

establishment and/or Website. 

 

Section 5. The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission shall advise MORPC employees to for-

ward any housing discrimination complaints to the Ohio Civil Rights Commission, 

Rhodes State Office Tower, 30 E. Broad Street, 4th Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215-

3414. 

 

Section 6. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 7.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
  



Resolution 14-14 

Page 2 

 
 

                                                                                

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: April 10, 2014 

Submitted by:  Kathy L. Werkmeister, Director, Housing and Community Services 

Prepared by:  Kathy L. Werkmeister, Director, Housing and Community Services 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: April 10, 2014 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Laura Koprowski, Director, Public & Government Affairs 

Wilma Yoder, Program Manager, Transportation Systems & 

Funding 

 

DATE:  

 

April 4, 2014 

SUBJECT: 

 

Proposed Resolution 11-14: "SUPPORTING THE PROPOSED 

AMENDMENT TO THE OHIO CONSTITUTION (ISSUE 1) TO EXTEND 

THE STATE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM" 

 

 

On May 6, 2014, voters will be asked to authorize Issue 1.  The proposed constitutional  

amendment will authorize up to $1.875 billion in bonds over 10 years for local community  

road, bridge, sewer, water and other infrastructure projects.   The ballot issue is a 10-year  

renewal that goes from its current level of $150 million per year to $175 million for five  

years, and then to $200 million. 

 

First approved in 1987, the program has twice been renewed by voters overwhelmingly, in  

1995 and 2005.  The State Capital Improvement Program (SCIP) is a grant/loan program 

administered by the Ohio Public Works Commission. SCIP has been a valuable funding tool 

to enable our local member governments in District 3 (Franklin County), District 11 (Union 

and Madison Counties), District 15 (Ross County), District 16 (Marion County) and District 

17 (Delaware, Fairfield, Pickaway and Licking Counties) to pursue needed infrastructure 

preservation.  For example, during the first 28 rounds, 41 political jurisdictions in Franklin 

County were awarded more than $397 million from the SCIP program. 

 

Through SCIP tens of thousands of jobs have been created in 27 years, and the renewal of 

this program is expected to provide an estimated 3,500 more construction and allied jobs 

over the next decade. By improving roads, bridges, sewers and other facilities, Issue 1 

improves job climate and quality of life for all Ohioans.  

 

MORPC previously approved Resolution 03-14: “SUPPORTING SJR6 AND HJR9 THAT WILL 

REAUTHORIZE OHIO PUBLIC WORKS COMMISSION BOND FUNDING FOR LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT INFRASTRUCTURE AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS”. This legislation 

allowed Issue 1 to be placed on the May 6 ballot.   



RESOLUTION 11-14 

 

"SUPPORTING THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE OHIO CONSTITUTION (ISSUE 1) TO EXTEND THE 

STATE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM” 

 

WHEREAS, Ohio local communities are in continuing need of support for vital road, bridge, sewer, 

water and other infrastructure projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, Ohio has in place a state program of support for local communities which not only helps 

to fund infrastructure projects, but also creates large numbers of construction and allied jobs; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Ohio State Capital Improvements Program has successfully provided support for more 

than 11,500 such projects and resulting job creation since its inception in 1987; and 

 

WHEREAS, Issue 1 on the May 6, 2014 statewide ballot provides Ohio voters with the opportunity to 

renew the program for ten years by authorizing issuance of $1.875 billion in capital improvement 

bonds for local community road, bridge, sewer, water and other infrastructure projects; and  

 

WHEREAS, no new taxes are required to fund repayment of the bonds; 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That MORPC supports and endorses the passage of Issue 1. 

 

Section 2. That MORPC will educate its members and others about the benefits of passing Issue 

1. 

 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 4.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

                                                                                

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: April 10, 2014 

Submitted by: Laura Koprowski, Director, Public & Government Affairs 

Prepared by:  Laura Koprowski, Director, Public & Government Affairs 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: April 10, 2014 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Officers and Board Members 

Policy Committee 

Transportation Advisory Committee 

Citizen Advisory Committee 

 

FROM: 

 

Nick Gill, Interim Director, Transportation 

DATE:  

 

April 4, 2014 

SUBJECT: 

 

Proposed Resolution T-3-14: “ADOPTING ‘PRINCIPLES FOR 

MANAGING MORPC-ATTRIBUTABLE FEDERAL FUNDS’ AND 

‘APPLICATION PROCEDURE FOR MORPC-ATTRIBUTABLE FUNDING 

PROGRAMS’” 
 

Every two years, MORPC solicits projects to use MORPC-attributable federal transportation funding.  

Approximately $33 million is available annually to be allocated to projects in MORPC’s transportation 

planning area.  To guide the selection of projects to use these funds, MORPC adopts Principles for 

Managing MORPC-Attributable Federal Funds (Principles) and the Application Procedure for MORPC-

Attributable Funding Programs (Procedures). Information on the 2014 draft documents was 

presented during the February committee meetings.  Proposed Resolution T-3-14 is to adopt the 

2014 Principles and Procedures.  

 

Over the last several months, the Attributable Funds Committee (AFC) reviewed and updated the 

Principles and Procedures.  This review and update is completed prior to each formal project 

solicitation cycle.  The drafts of the revised Principles and Procedures were available on the MORPC 

website at http://www.morpc.org/transportation/funding-grants/morpc-attributable-funding/index  

for public review and comment.  MORPC accepted public comments on the Principles and 

Procedures from January 23rd through February 23rd.  No comments were received. 

 

The Principles and Procedures are briefly described below, including the most noteworthy changes 

from the 2012 versions.  

 

Principles for Managing MORPC-Attributable Federal Funds 

 

There are 19 general principles that define: 

 General project and applicant eligibility 

 General application guidelines 

 Responsibilities for advancing a project through ODOT’s Project Development Process 

 
 

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/funding-grants/morpc-attributable-funding/index


Memo 

Proposed Resolution T-3-14 

Page two 

 

 
 

Application Procedure for MORPC-Attributable Funding Programs 

 

The Procedures consist of the following: 

 Detailed information about each federal funding program 

 Specific application procedures 

 The application form and instructions 

 Detailed evaluation criteria 

 The project selection process 

 

Noteworthy changes from the 2012 version: 

 

The only significant changes proposed from the 2012 version were to the economic development 

criteria and the process for allocating CMAQ funds.  The AFC has recommended a new set of project 

evaluation criteria for economic development that is more detailed and requires additional 

justification.  For CMAQ funds, ODOT directed the eight large MPOs to create one statewide process 

to allocate funding to projects.  This includes a two-step process whereby each MPO solicits projects 

from the local jurisdictions in its area, and then the MPO decides which to submit to the statewide 

process.  The application process in the draft Principles and Procedures documents would constitute 

this first step of the statewide process. 

 

Other smaller changes from the 2012 versions included more detail on handling out-of-cycle 

requests, refinement of the target funding percentages by project category, definition of how much 

future funding to commit, and a completely on-line application submittal process.  

 

A workshop will be held on May 13th for agencies wishing to submit project updates and applications 

for new projects.  The Initial Applications for new funding will be due on June 16, 2014.  Project 

Updates for existing commitments will be due on June 2nd.  

 

NTG:NJV:bsn 

 

Attachment: Proposed Resolution T-3-14 

 

 

 

 



 

RESOLUTION T-3-14 

 

“ADOPTING ‘PRINCIPLES FOR MANAGING MORPC-ATTRIBUTABLE FEDERAL FUNDS’ AND 

‘APPLICATION PROCEDURE FOR MORPC-ATTRIBUTABLE FUNDING PROGRAMS’” 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission is 

designated as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Columbus Metropolitan Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) sub-allocates part of its Surface 

Transportation Program (STP), Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ), and 

Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) funding to MORPC and other MPOs; and 

 

WHEREAS, the MPO is responsible for allocating these federal transportation funds that are sub-

allocated to it; and  

 

WHEREAS, the amount of STP funds attributable to MORPC is based on the population of the urbanized 

areas, as defined by the U.S. Census Bureau, within its transportation planning area; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee, to fairly allocate these funds in conformance with 

federal and state laws and regulations, adopted by Resolution T-9-97: “PRINCIPLES FOR ALLOCATION 

OF MORPC-ATTRIBUTABLE FEDERAL FUNDING,” which was subsequently expanded and revised by 

Resolutions T-15-02, T-15-04, T-12-06, T-10-08, T-8-10 and T-3-12; and 

 

WHEREAS, Resolution T-3-12 included the stipulation that these principles, procedures, and policies 

be evaluated prior to each update of the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and 

 

WHEREAS, staff and the Attributable Funds Committee, composed of members of the Transportation 

Advisory Committee and representatives of the Citizen Advisory Committee, the Transportation Policy 

Committee and other interests, completed the review and update including a public comment period; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the Citizen Advisory Committee, at its meeting on March 31, 2014, and the Transportation 

Advisory Committee, at its meeting on April 2, 2014, recommended approval of these principles and 

procedures to the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the Principles for Managing MORPC-Attributable Federal Funds, dated April 

2014, are hereby approved to be used and applied in allocating MORPC-attributable 

federal funding. 

 

Section 2. That the Application Procedure for MORPC-Attributable Funding Programs, dated April 

2014, is hereby approved for use and application in allocating MORPC-attributable 

funding. 

 



Resolution T-3-14 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Section 3. That these principles, procedures, and policies be evaluated prior to each update of 

the TIP. 

 

Section 4. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption of 

this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee. 

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

_________________________________________  

Date 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

 

The following two documents are available on the MORPC website at 

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/funding-grants/morpc-attributable-funding/index   

 

 Principles for Managing MORPC-Attributable Federal Funds, dated April 2014 

 Application Procedure for MORPC-Attributable Funding Programs, dated April 2014 

 

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/funding-grants/morpc-attributable-funding/index


Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Transportation Policy Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, March 13, 2014 

2:27 p.m. 

 

Transportation Policy Committee Members 

Karen Angelou 

Chris Bauserman 

Stacey Boumis 

Eric Brandon 

Marilyn Brown 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher 

Derrick Clay 

Ben Collins 

Karl Craven 

Michael Ebert 

Steve Gladman 

Matt Greeson 

Marsha Grigsby 

Marsha Hall 

Marian Harris 

Tracy Hatmaker 

Dan Havener 

Jan Heichel for Bryan Rhoads 

Tom Homan 

Erik Janas 

Anthony Jones 

Steve Kennedy 

Greg Lestini 

Holly Mattei 

Rory McGuiness 

Bonnie Michael 

Erin Miller 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

John O’Grady 

Eric Phillips 

Rob Platte 

Dean Ringle 

Thom Slack 

Dennis Stapleton 

Joe Stefanov 

Scott Tourville 

Ellen Walker 

Ira Weiss 

Nancy White

 

Associate Members 

Jeff Cabot John O’Meara  

 

Commission Members 

Franklin Christman Steve Stolte 

 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Amelia Costanzo 

Mark Crosten 

Mary Ann Frantz 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Robert Lawler 

Eileen Leuby 

Sarah McQuaide 

William Murdock 

Deborah Murphy 

Brenda Noe 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Maria Schaper 

Andy Taylor 

Nathaniel Vogt 

Garth Weithman 

 

Guests 

Amy Lowe, FCEO 

Greg Murphy, ODOT 

Joe DiStefano, Calthorpe Associates 

Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter 

 

 

Chair Marilyn Brown called the Transportation Policy Committee Meeting to order at 2:27 p.m. 

 

Monthly Progress Report – Robert Lawler, MORPC Transportation Director 

Robert Lawler reported that the Transportation Review Advisory Council (TRAC) Application Cycle opens 

Tuesday, April 1, 2014 and closes Friday, May 30, 2014.  TRAC applications are web based. TRAC will only 

accept applications that meet one of the following criteria: 

 The project is an existing TRAC funded project and additional funds are needed to advance the project 

to the next stage of development. 



Commission Meeting Minutes 

February 13, 2014 

Page 2 

 
 A new project, which has not previously applied for TRAC funding that demonstrates significant impact 

to jobs in Ohio as well as a regional/statewide economic impact. 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) Amendment – Maria Schaper, MORPC Transportation Systems & 

Funding 

Maria Schaper reported on the 2012-2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) Amendment. The 

proposed amendment adds two projects to the 2012-2035 MTP: 

 

 I-71 from Stringtown Road to SR 315 – major widening 

 I-70 from Hilliard-Rome Road to I-270 – major widening 

 

No action from the Transportation Policy Committee is required at this time. However, members are 

encouraged to identify any additional projects to be included in the MTP. Any project not currently in the MTP 

that will use federal funding and go to construction before July 2016 needs to be included in the MTP 

amendment. 

 

Consent Agenda 

Marsha Grigsby made a motion to approve the consent agenda, second by Marian Harris; motion passed.   

 

The Transportation Policy Committee Meeting adjourned at 2:35 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Rory McGuiness, Secretary 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2014MarchMTP%20(1).pdf


RESOLUTION T-4-14 

 

“AMENDING THE SFY 2014 PLANNING WORK PROGRAM TO MODIFY THE ACTIVITY TO INVESTIGATE 

PASSENGER RAIL SERVICE BETWEEN COLUMBUS AND CHICAGO” 

 

WHEREAS, following review by the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT), the Federal Highway 

Administration (FHWA), and the Central Ohio Transit Authority, the Policy Committee accepted the 

MORPC Planning Work Program for Fiscal Year 2014 (PWP) by Resolution T-6-13; and 

 

WHEREAS, local governments in Indiana caused to be prepared a feasibility study of passenger rail 

service between Columbus and Chicago that found there is a basis to believe such service could be 

successfully and affordably offered; and 

 

WHEREAS, cities in Ohio such as Columbus, Marysville, and Lima are on the proposed route and 

understanding the benefits of the proposal’s implementation would aid Central Ohio in considering 

its support for the proposal; and 

 

WHEREAS, a limited investigation of such benefits and the community’s level of support for the 

proposal and coordination with other entities interested in the proposal are appropriate activities for 

the Metropolitan Planning Organization that can be accomplished within the current budget of the 

PWP so long as the activity is included in the PWP; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2014 PWP was modified by Resolution T-16-13 to include a new product and 

methodology in Work Element #61014-001 ((titled “Long-Range Multimodal Transportation 

Planning”) to investigate the “Business Case and Support for Columbus to Chicago Passenger Rail” 

with no change in budget; and  

 

WHEREAS, a next step in the development of the rail line is to begin National Environmental Policy 

Act (NEPA) studies in accordance with Federal Railroad Administration guidelines; and  

 

WHEREAS, additional appropriate activities for the Metropolitan Planning Organization that can be 

accomplished within the current budget of the PWP are to research the costs necessary to move to 

the next stage of project development; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Citizen Advisory Committee, at its March 31, 2014 meeting, and the Transportation 

Advisory Committee, at its April 2, 2014 meeting, recommended adoption of this resolution by the 

Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That it hereby modifies the MORPC SFY 2014 Planning Work Program to modify the 

product and methodology in Work Element #61014-001 (titled “Long-Range 

Multimodal Transportation Planning”) to investigate the “Business Case and Support 

for Columbus to Chicago Passenger Rail; Scope outline and cost estimate for a Tier 1 

EIS of the Corridor,” as shown in the attachment with no change in budget. 

 

Section 2 That staff is authorized to make such changes to the work element as are needed to 

satisfy clarifying comments from the Ohio and U.S. Departments of Transportation, 

but which do not change the intent of the passenger rail task.   

 

Section 3 That this resolution be forwarded to ODOT as evidence of acceptance of this 

amendment by the Transportation Policy Committee. 

 



Resolution T-4-14 

Page 2 

 

Section 4 That this committee finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions of 

this committee concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were taken 

in open meetings of the committee. 

 

 

 

      ___________________________________________ 

      Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

 

      ___________________________________________ 

      Date 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

 

Attachment: New Product and Methodology Description: “Business Case and Support for   

  Columbus to Chicago Passenger Rail” 

  



Resolution T-4-14 

Page 2 

 

 

Attachment to RESOLUTION T-4-14: “AMENDING THE SFY 2014 PLANNING WORK PROGRAM TO ADD 

A NEW ACTIVITY TO INVESTIGATE PASSENGER RAIL SERVICE BETWEEN COLUMBUS AND CHICAGO” 

 

Action:   Adding a new product and methodology to an existing project in the Planning Work 

Program (PWP) 

 

Work Element No. 61014-001: Long-Range Multimodal Transportation Planning 

 

Product: Business Case and Support for Columbus to Chicago Passenger Rail; Scope outline 

and cost estimate for a Tier 1 EIS of the Corridor 

 

Method: Using costs and operating assumptions included in Northern Indiana/Ohio 

Passenger Rail Corridor Feasibility Study and Business Plan and additional new research to 

identify the interaction between Central Ohio and points along the proposed route, 

investigate the benefits of offering passenger rail service between Columbus and Chicago.  In 

coordination with PWP Work Element 61014-002 investigate the level of support for such 

service in Central Ohio.  Coordinate this activity with other similar activities in other Ohio 

cities and in Indiana and the Chicago area.  Work to be performed with consulting 

assistance.   

 

Investigate the appropriate contents and the cost of a Tier 1 Environmental Impact 

Statement (EIS) of the Columbus to Chicago Passenger Rail Corridor by securing the services 

of up to five qualified consultants to prepare a scope outline and cost estimate for the EIS.  

The purpose in engaging multiple consultants to perform such work is to identify a range of 

opinions on the contents of the EIS and increase the accuracy of the cost estimate to 

perform the EIS, thus improving the quality of any future procurement to prepare the Tier 1 

EIS. 

 

Agency/ies: MORPC and local agencies 

 

Schedule:  Consultant progress reports:  Monthly 

Final Report:  July 2014 

 

Related Activities: No Change 

 

Budget: No change 

 




